
 

If you would like help to understand this document, or would like it in 
another format, please call Clive Lloyd, Governance Services on 01432 
260249 or e-mail clive.lloyd@herefordshire.gov.uk in advance of the 
meeting. 

 

 

 
 
AGENDA 
 
Regulatory Sub Committee 
 

 

Date: Tuesday 29 September 2015 

Time: 1.00 pm 

Place: Committee Room 1, The Shire Hall, St Peter's Square, 
Hereford, HR1 2HX 

Notes: Please note the time, date and venue of the meeting. 

For any further information please contact: 

Clive Lloyd, Governance Services 
Tel: 01432 260249 
Email: clive.lloyd@herefordshire.gov.uk 

 
 

 



 

 

Agenda for the Meeting of the Regulatory Sub 
Committee 
  
  
   
  
   
 Councillor CR Butler  
 Councillor DW Greenow  
 Councillor PJ McCaull  
 

   
 
 



 
HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL  29 SEPTEMBER 2015 
 

 

AGENDA  
 Pages 
  
1. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

 
 

 To elect a Chairman for the hearing. 
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 To receive any declarations of interest by Members in respect of items on the 
agenda. 
 

 

3. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

 

 In the opinion of the Proper Officer, the following item will not be, or is likely 
not to be, open to the public and press at the time it is considered. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: that under section 100(A)(4) of the Local 

Government Act 1972, the public be 
excluded from the meeting for the following 
item of business on the grounds that it 
involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Schedule 12(A) of 
the Act, as indicated below and it is 
considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information. 

 
1 Information relating to any individual. 
 
2 Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual. 
 
 
 

 

4. APPLICATION TO RE-INSTATE AN EXPIRED HACKNEY CARRIAGE 
VEHICLE LICENCE H888 OUTSIDE STANDARD CONDITION 11.5 
 

11 - 28 

 To decide whether to licence a vehicle outside the standards vehicle licence 
conditions. 
 
 

 

5. APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A LICENSED PREMISES GAMING 
MACHINE PERMIT FROM 3 TO 4 IN RESPECT OF 'THE GRANDSTAND, 
GRANDSTAND ROAD, HEREFORD. HR4 9NH' - SECTION 283 
GAMBLING ACT 200 
 

29 - 46 

 To consider an application for the variation of a Licensed Premises Gaming 
Machine Permit from 3 to 4 machines in respect of ‘The Grandstand’, 
Grandstand Road, Hereford, HR4 9NH.’ 
 
 

 





The Public’s Rights to Information and Attendance at Meetings  
 
YOU HAVE A RIGHT TO: - 
 
• Attend all Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings unless the business 

to be transacted would disclose ‘confidential’ or ‘exempt’ information. 

• Inspect agenda and public reports at least five clear days before the date of the meeting. 

• Inspect minutes of the Council and all Committees and Sub-Committees and written 
statements of decisions taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members for up to six 
years following a meeting. 

• Inspect background papers used in the preparation of public reports for a period of up to 
four years from the date of the meeting.  (A list of the background papers to a report is 
given at the end of each report).  A background paper is a document on which the officer 
has relied in writing the report and which otherwise is not available to the public. 

• Access to a public Register stating the names, addresses and wards of all Councillors with 
details of the membership of Cabinet and of all Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have a reasonable number of copies of agenda and reports (relating to items to be 
considered in public) made available to the public attending meetings of the Council, 
Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees. 

• Have access to a list specifying those powers on which the Council have delegated 
decision making to their officers identifying the officers concerned by title. 

• Copy any of the documents mentioned above to which you have a right of access, subject 
to a reasonable charge (20p per sheet subject to a maximum of £5.00 per agenda plus a 
nominal fee of £1.50 for postage). 

• Access to this summary of your rights as members of the public to attend meetings of the 
Council, Cabinet, Committees and Sub-Committees and to inspect and copy documents. 

Public Transport Links 

There are bus stops directly outside the building. Hereford train station is a 15 minute walk, 
Hereford country bus station and Hereford city bus station are both a 5 minute walk from the 
Shirehall.  

RECORDING OF THIS MEETING 
Please note that filming, photography and recording of this meeting is permitted provided that 
it does not disrupt the business of the meeting. 
Members of the public are advised that if you do not wish to be filmed or photographed you 
should let the governance services team know before the meeting starts so that anyone who 
intends filming or photographing the meeting can be made aware. 
The reporting of meetings is subject to the law and it is the responsibility of those doing the 
reporting to ensure that they comply. 

 
 

5



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

HEREFORDSHIRE COUNCIL 
 
 

SHIRE HALL, ST PETERS SQUARE, HEREFORD HR1 2HX. 
 
 
 

FIRE AND EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 
 

 

In the event of a fire or emergency the alarm bell will ring 
continuously. 

You should vacate the building in an orderly manner through the 
nearest available fire exit. 

You should then proceed to the Fire Assembly Point which is located 
in the Shire Hall Side Car Park.  A check will be undertaken to ensure 
that those recorded as present have vacated the building following 
which further instructions will be given. 
 

Please do not allow any items of clothing, etc. to obstruct any of the 
exits. 

Do not delay your vacation of the building by stopping or returning to 
collect coats or other personal belongings. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6



 
 

 

7



8



Licensing Hearing Flowchart 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Introduction 

Discussion  

Report by council 
• Outline of application 
• Summary of issues  

 

Parties address committee using 
spokesman if necessary  

Applicant addresses committee 

Members of committee can ask 
questions 

Cross examination generally not 
permitted.  

All parties to have equal maximum 
length of time to speak.  

Note:  hearing may be adjourned or 
heard in party’s absence. 

9



10



AGENDA ITEM 4

11

Document is Restricted



14



15

Document is Restricted



28



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542 

 

Meeting: 
 

Regulatory Sub-Committee 

Meeting date: 29 SEPTEMBER 2015 

Title of report: APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A 
LICENSED PREMISES GAMING MACHINE 
PERMIT FROM 3 TO 4 IN RESPECT OF ‘THE 
GRANDSTAND, GRANDSTAND ROAD, 
HEREFORD. HR4 9NH’ – SECTION 283 
GAMBLING ACT 2005 

Report by: LICENSING OFFICER 
 

Classification 
Open 

Key Decision  
This is not an executive decision. 

Wards Affected 
Hereford 

Purpose 
To consider an application for the variation of a Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permit 
from 3 to 4 machines in respect of ‘The Grandstand’, Grandstand Road, Hereford, HR4 
9NH.’ 

Recommendation 

THAT Sub-Committee determine the variation with a view to promoting the licensing 
objectives which are: 

a) preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 

associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime, 

b) ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way, and 

c) protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or 

exploited by gambling. 

The committee should also take into consideration 

AGENDA ITEM 5

29



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542 

• The ‘Guidance to Licensing Authorities 4th Edition’ issued by the 

Gambling Commission 

• Herefordshire Council Gambling Policy 

• Code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises with an 
alcohol licence’ issued in August 2014 by the Gambling Commission 

 

Options 

1. (a) grant the application, 

(b) refuse the application, or 

(c) grant it in respect of— 

 (i) a smaller number of machines than that specified in the application, 

(ii) a different category of machines from that specified in the application, 

or 

(iii) both. 

 

Reasons for Recommendations 

2. Ensures compliance with the Gambling Act 2005. 

Key Considerations 

3. Licence Application 
 
The details of the application are: 
 
Applicant Green King Retailing Ltd 

 
PO Box  337, Abbot House, Bury St Edmunds, Suffolk, 
IP33 1QW 

Solicitor N/K 

Type of 
application: 

Variation to existing Gaming Machine Permit 

 
 
5.  Summary of Application 

The application is to add a further one machine of Category D to the existing permit. 
 

In accordance with the powers of delegation such application cannot be determined 
by an officer but only by the Licensing Committee for the Authority. 

 

30



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542 

6. A plan of the proposed locations of the machines is attached within the background 
papers. 
 

7. A policies statement is also included to address those matters covered within the 
‘Code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol 
licence’ issued in August 2014 by the Gambling Commission. 

 
8. The matter is therefore bought before Committee for determination. 

 
 

Community Impact 

9. Any decision is unlikely to have any impact on the local community. 

Equality duty  

10. There are no equality or human rights issues in relation to the content of this report. 

Financial implications 
11. There are unlikely to be any financial implications for the authority at this time. 

Legal Implications 

12 Schedule 13 of the legislation states that: 

 5 (1) A licensing authority may not attach conditions to a permit. 
(2) As soon as is reasonably practicable after granting an application, a 

licensing authority shall issue a permit to the applicant. 
(3) As soon as is reasonably practicable after refusing an application a 

licensing authority shall notify the applicant of— 
   (a) the refusal, and 
   (b) the reasons for it. 
 
6  (1) A licensing authority may grant an application under this Schedule on

  only if the applicant holds an on-premises alcohol licence. 
(2) A licensing authority may not refuse an application, or grant an 

application in respect of a different category or smaller number of 
gaming machines than that specified in the application, unless they 
have— 
(a) notified the applicant of their intention to refuse the 

application, or grant the application in respect of— 
(i) a smaller number of machines than that specified in 

the application, 
(ii)  a different category of machines from that specified in 

the application, or 
     (iii)  both, and 
   (b) given the applicant an opportunity to make representations. 

(3) A licensing authority may satisfy sub-paragraph (2)(b) by giving the 
applicant an opportunity to make— 

   (a) oral representations, 
   (b)  written representations, or 

31



 

Further information on the subject of this report is available from 
Fred Spriggs – Licensing Officer 01432 383542 

   (c) both. 
(4) Sub-paragraph (2)(b) shall not apply in respect of a refusal if the 

refusal was by virtue of sub-paragraph (1). 
 

13. Right of Appeal 

21 (1) The applicant for or holder of a permit may appeal if the licensing 
 authority 

   (a) reject an application for a permit, 
(b) grant an application for a permit in respect of a smaller 

number of machines than that specified in the application or a 
different category of machines from that specified in the 
application (or both), or 

   (c) give a notice under paragraph 16. 
 
     (2) An appeal under this paragraph must be instituted— 

(a) in the magistrates' court for a local justice area in which the 
premises to which the appeal relates are wholly or partly 
situated, 

   (b) by notice of appeal given to the designated officer, and 
   (c) within the period of 21 days beginning with the day on which 
     the appellant or holder receives notice of the decision against 
    which the appeal is brought. 

 
Risk Management 
 
14. There is little risk associated with the decision at this time as the legislation allows a 

right of appeal to the Magistrates Court.  
 

Appendices 

a. Application Form 
 b. Plan of Premises 

c. Permit Letter 
d. ‘Code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol 

licence’ issued in August 2014 by the Gambling Commission’. 
 
Background Papers 
None. 

 

 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



 

Bl
ue

 in
di

ca
te

s 
cu

rr
en

t A
W

P 
m

ac
hi

ne
 p

os
iti

on
 

Re
d 

In
di

ca
te

s 
pr

op
os

ed
 C

at
 D

 C
ra

ne
 p

os
iti

on
 

39



40



41



42



Code of practice for gaming machines in
clubs and premises with an alcohol licence
For club gaming permits, club machine permits and alcohol
licensed premises
August 2014

1 For club gaming permits, club machine permits and alcohol 
This is the Commission’s Code of Practice issued under section 24 of the Gambling Act 2005 
(the Act) relating to provision of facilities for gaming machine gambling in accordance with 
club gaming, club machine and alcohol licensed premises permits. This includes:

 Registrations under Parts II and III of the Gaming Act 1968 which, under transitional 
provisions, are treated as club gaming and club machine permits respectively

 Club gaming and club machine permits issued under the Club Gaming and Club 
Machine Permits (Scotland) Regulations 2007

 Premises which have a licence issued by a Licensing Board under section 26(1) or 
47(2) of the Licensing (Scotland) Act 2005 authorising the sale of alcohol on the 
premises.

Code provision 1.1
Club gaming permits, club machine permits and alcohol 
Gaming machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol licence 

1      Compliance with the code of practice should be the responsibility of a designated person:
 in pubs in England and Wales: the designated premises supervisor (which the 

Licensing Act 2003 requires as a condition of any alcohol premises licence)
 in premises which are licensed to serve alcohol for consumption on the premises 

under the relevant Scottish licence: the premises manager (which the Licensing 
(Scotland) Act 2005 requires as a condition of the premises licence), or, 

 where an occasional licence is held, a responsible person designated by the holder 
of the licence

 in clubs in England and Wales: 
o if an alcohol licence is held, the designated premises supervisor
o if no alcohol licence is held, a responsible individual to be nominated by the 

club management or other governing body elected by the members
 in clubs in Scotland: 

o for a qualifying club under the Licensing (Clubs) (Scotland) Regulations 2007 
(SI No 76 of 2007) a person nominated by the club management committee, 
or other governing body elected by the members, and who is trained in 
accordance with the Licensing (Training of Staff) (Scotland) Regulations 2007

o for a qualifying club operating under an occasional licence a responsible 
person to be nominated by the club management committee or other 
governing body elected by the members

o the name and contact details of the nominated person should be made 
available to the clerk of the relevant licensing board.

1

43



Code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol licence

2 Location and operation of machines

All permit holders
Compliance with these provisions is a condition of your permit, and failure to do so 
could result in revocation of the permit.1

Code provision 2.1
Location and operation of machines
All permit holders 

1    All gaming machines situated on the premises must be located in a place within the premises 
so that their use can be supervised, either by staff whose duties include such supervision 
(including bar or floor staff) or by other means.

2 Permit holders must have in place arrangements for such supervision.

3    All gaming machines situated on the premises shall be located in a place that requires a 
customer who wishes to use any ATM made available on the premises to cease gambling at 
the gaming machines in order to do so. ‘ATM’ means a machine located on the premises, 
which enables a person using it to obtain cash by use of a credit or debit card.

3 Access to gambling by children and young persons

Compliance with this section is not a condition of your permit. However it sets out 
good practice in this area and the Commission considers it should be implemented 
by permit holders.

Code provision 3.1
Access to gambling by children and young persons
All permit holders 

1    Permit holders should put into effect procedures intended to prevent underage gambling. This 
should include procedures for:

 checking the age of those who appear underage 
 refusing entry to anyone unable to produce an acceptable form of identification.

2   Permit holders should take all reasonable steps to ensure that all relevant employees 
understand their responsibilities for preventing underage gambling.

 Permit holders should only accept identification which:
 contains a photograph from which the individual can be identified
 states the individual’s date of birth
 is valid
 is legible and has no visible signs of tampering or reproduction.

3    The Commission considers acceptable forms of identification to include: any identification 
carrying the PASS logo (for example Citizencard or Validate); a driving licence (including 
provisional licence) with photocard; or a passport.

1 Compliance with these provisions is a condition of the relevant permit as a result of the Gambling Act 2005: section 271 for Club 
Gaming Permits, section 273 for Club Machine Permits, section 282 for alcohol licensed premises using their automatic machine
permissions and section 283 for licensed premises Gaming Machine Permits and alcohol licensed premises Gaming Machine Permits.

44



Code of practice for gaming machines in clubs and premises with an alcohol licence

Code provision 3.2
Access to gambling by children and young persons
All permit holders 

1    Procedures should be in place for dealing with cases where a child or young person repeatedly 
attempts to gamble on category B or C machines, including oral warnings, reporting the 
offence to the Commission and the police, and making available information on problem 
gambling.

4 Complaints and disputes

Compliance with this section is not a condition of your permit. However it sets out 
good practice in this area and the Commission considers it should be implemented 
by permit holders.

Code provision 4.1
Complaints and disputes
All permit holders 

1    Permit holders should put into effect a written procedure for handling customer complaints and 
disputes regarding the use of gaming machines on their premises

2    A ‘complaint’ means a complaint about any aspect of the permit holder’s conduct of their 
permissible activities, and a ‘dispute’ is any complaint which: 

a) is not resolved at the first stage of the complaints procedure, and
b) relates to the outcome of the complainant’s gambling transaction.

3      Permit holders should ensure that:
 customers are told the name and status of the person to contact about their 

complaint
 customers are given a copy of the complaints procedure on request or on making a 

complaint
 all complaints are handled in accordance with the procedure.

             Gambling Commission August 2014

Keeping gambling fair and safe for all

For further information or to register your interest in the Commission please visit our website at: 
www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Copies of this document are available in alternative formats on request.

Gambling Commission
Victoria Square House
Victoria Square 
Birmingham B2 4BP 

T 0121 230 6666
F 0121 230 6720
E info@gamblingcommission.gov.uk

Gambling Commission August 2014
ADV 14/07

45



46


	Agenda
	
	Licensing Hearing Flowchart

	4 APPLICATION TO RE-INSTATE AN EXPIRED HACKNEY CARRIAGE VEHICLE LICENCE H888 OUTSIDE STANDARD CONDITION 11.5
	H888 Appendices 17.9.16

	5 APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF A LICENSED PREMISES GAMING MACHINE PERMIT FROM 3 TO 4 IN RESPECT OF 'THE GRANDSTAND, GRANDSTAND ROAD, HEREFORD. HR4 9NH' - SECTION 283 GAMBLING ACT 200
	R - Grandstand application
	Grandstand Hereford site plan
	R - Permit letter Grandstand Hereford
	code-of-practice-for-gaming-machines-in-clubs-and-premises-with-an-alcohol-licence


